UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

CHILDREN'S BUREAU

GRACE ABBOTT; Chief

JUVENILE-COURT STATISTICS 1927

BASED ON INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY 42 COURTS

œ

Bureau Publication No. 195



CONTROL STATES

COVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE

WASHINGTON (VEN

CONTENTS

A South Company of the Company of th
Letter of transmittal. A cooperative plan for obtaining national statistics of delinquency and o
A cooperative plan for obtaining national statistics of delinquency and o
dependency and neglect. Courts furnishing statistical material for 1927
Courts furnishing statistical material for 1927
Analysis of cases dealt with
The eases reported
Number and types of eases
Methods by which cases were handled
Children involved in the cases
Race and nativity
Age distribution
Whereabouts.
Delinquency cases.
Sources of complaint
Pince of care pending hearing or disposition.
Cliningos
Dispositions
Cases discharged from probation
Dependency and neglect cases.
Sources of complaint
Place of eare pending hearing or disposition
Charges
Dispositions Cases discharged from supervision
Coses discharged from supervision
Appendix.—Trend in juvenile delinquency
Delinquency rates in 12 cities. Juveniles committed to institutions for juvenile delinquents and to
Juveniles commission so inssistitions for juvenile definquents and to
penal institutions as reported by the United States Bureau of the
Census

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, CHILDREN'S BUREAU, Washington, October 18, 1929.

SIR: There is transmitted herewith the summary for 1927 of reports of cases of delinquency and dependency supplied to the Children's Bureau by juvenile courts. During the calendar year 1927, the first full year during which the bureau's plan for obtaining comparable statistics in this field was in operation, 43 courts supplied reports regularly. Alice Scott Nutt, of the social-service division, has been in immediate charge of the development of the plan for assembling uniform statistics of juvenile delinquency, in cooperation with Dr. Elizabeth C. Tandy, director of the statistical division, and Agnes K. Hanna, director of the social-service division.

Respectfully submitted.

GRACE ABBOTT, Chief.

HON. JAMES J. DAVIS. Secretary of Labor.

JUVENILE-COURT STATISTICS, 1927

A COOPERATIVE PLAN FOR OBTAINING NATIONAL STA-TISTICS OF DELINQUENCY AND OF DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT

For some years the Children's Bureau has been at work on a plan for making available current information on a national scale concerning trends in juvenile delinquency. The United States Bureau of the Census at approximately 10-year intervals publishes statistics of juvenile delinquents in institutions, but no attempt is made by that bureau to procure statistics concerning delinquents dealt with by courts in other ways than by institutional commitment.1 Relatively few juvenile courts print annual reports which include statistical material. Lack of uniformity in methods of compiling statistics used in the different courts and marked variations in inclusions and methods of presentation make the statistics practically valueless for purposes of comparing delinquency rates in various localities, though they are of value in determining trends in individual communities from year to year. Comparable statistics with reference to cases of dependency and neglect dealt with by the courts are even more difficult to obtain, because of wider variation in the type of cases within the jurisdiction of the courts.

The importance, therefore, of agreement on a uniform plan for recording and compiling statistics of juvenile delinquency is apparent. With the assistance of the committee on records and statistics of the National Probation Association the Children's Bureau has devised such a method.2 The response to the plan has been gratifying. Cooperation by juvenile courts and State departments of public welfare has increased steadily since its presentation. In several States the department of public welfare or some other State agency has taken the plan into consideration in making revisions of annual and monthly reports required of courts, and in other States these agencies have been active in calling the plan to the attention of juvenile-court judges and probation officers. By July 1, 1928, about 100 juvenile courts in various parts of the country, and several State departments concerned with juvenile-court work, were cooperating. Forty-two courts sent in statistical data for the entire calendar

year 1927, and these data form the basis of this report.3

¹ Children under Institutional Care, 1923, p. 200. U. S. Bureau of the Census, Washington, 1927.
² The bacts of the plan is the filling out of statistical cards—a pollow card for each case of delinquency disposed of during a calcular year, a blue card for each case of dependency or neglect disposed of, and a whole card for each case of delinquency cases) or from supervision (in dependency or neglect cases). The yellow and blue cards differ only in the lets of charges and dispositions. The cards have been an arranged that little clarical work is involved; most of the information is entered by charking. Cards and a bulletin of instructions are furnished by the Children's Bureau without charge to expersing courts, as are bracks or addressed surdiops requiring no postage for use in mailing early beek to the bureau. Cards are returned to the bureau for unbulation at least once a year, and preferably sovered times each year.

to the bursan. Owrds are returned to the bursan for cabulation of feast once a year, and preferably soveral nimes each year.

The Children's Bursau prepares from the cards a set of 23 tables on printed forms for each court. There are sent to the courts for use in annual reports, if desired. The firsts presented in these tables include charges, pieces children were seried for possing becoming, manner of dealing with sees, and dispositions. The number of different children deali with, the number of repositors, and certain notal fasts are also shown. For cases discharged from probation or supervision the length of the probation parted and the reason for discharge are given. In a few instances the court preferred to compile its own tables in secondance with the Children's Bursau plan, instead of sending in cards.

**Cards were also supplied for 1877 by the District of Columbia juvenile court, but these were not provided in time to be included in the tabulations.

COURTS FURNISHING STATISTICAL MATERIAL FOR 1927

Cards were received from 41 courts in 15 States for the entire calendar year 1927, and tables were prepared by 1 court. The names of these courts with the largest city or town in the area served by each court are given below. For convenience each court will be designated hereafter only by the name of the territory over which it has jurisdiction.

Largest etc or town in

	SPEE SULVES
California: Juvenile court of the city and county of San	
Francisco.	San Francisco.
Connecticut:	Dellement
Juvenile court of the city of Bridgeport	Bridgeport.
Juvenile court of Hartford	Harttord.
Juvenile court of Clay County	Beseil
Juvenile court of Delaware County	Muncia
Juvenile court of Jennings County	North Vernon
Juvenile court of Lake County	Gary
Juvenile court of Marion County	Indianapolia
Juvenile court of Monroe County	Bloomington.
Juvenile court of Vermillion County.	Clinton.
Juvenile court of Wayne County	Richmond.
Juvenile court of Wells County	Bluffton.
Juvenile court of White County	Monticello.
Massachusetts: Middlesex County superior court	Lowell.
Michigan: Kent County probate court, juvenile division	Grand Rapids.
Minnesota:	
Juvenile court of Henneple County	Minneapolis.
Juvenile court of Ramsey County	St. Paul.
New Jersey:	Y
Juvenile court of the county of Hudson Juvenile court of the county of Mercer.	Jersey City.
New York:	Trenton.
Children's court of Buffalo	Duffele
Clinton County children's court	Plattebure
Columbia County children's court	Hudson.
Delaware County children's court	Walton
Dutchess County children's court	Pomphkeensie
Erie County children's court.	Lackawanna.
Franklin County children's court	Malone
Children's court of the city of New York	New York.
Orleans County children's court	Medina.
Westchester County children's court	Yonkers.
North Carolina:	
Juvenile court of Buncombe County	Asheville.
Winston-Salem juvenile court	Winston-Salem.
Ohio:	
Franklin County juvenile court	Columbus.
Common-pleas court of Hamilton County, division of	CI
domestic relations, juvenile court and marital relations. Common-pleas court of Mahoning County, division of	Cincinnati.
domestic relations	Vennostere
Pennsylvania:	roungstown.
Juvenile court of Berks County	Reading.
Juvenile court of Lycoming County.	Williamsport.
Juvenile court of Montgomery County	Norristown
Juvenile court of Montgomery County	Philadelphia
Tennessee: Juvenile court of Memphis	Memphis.
Tennessee: Juvenile court of Memphis	Norfolk.
Washington: Pierce County juvenile court	Tacoma.
Wisconsin: Dane County juvenile court	Madison.

[&]quot;Tables prepared by two other courts were not entirely comparable with tables prepared by the Children's Bureau and were not used in this report.

ANALYSIS OF CASES DEALT WITH

THE CASES REPORTED

Number and types of cases.

In order to obtain complete information on all cases, those disposed of by the courts or discharged from probation or supervision during the year were reported, rather than those referred to the courts or placed on probation or under supervision. Cards or tables for such cases, with a few exceptions, were received from each of the 42 courts during 1927. The total number of cases reported by these courts was 46,750. (Table 1.) The number of cases reported by individual courts ranged from 14 to 11,281. This variation in number of cases was largely due to the area of jurisdiction; some of the courts had jurisdiction over densely populated areas in large cities, other courts

served smaller cities, and others rural districts.

Delinquency cases were reported by each of the 42 courts, but 8 did not report cases of dependency or neglect. The total number of dependency and neglect cases (12,150) is less than half the number of delinquency cases (26,241) reported by the 34 courts sending cards or tables for both types of cases. The proportions of dependency and neglect and delinquency cases cared for by the different courts showed much variation. Eight of these 34 courts reported more dependency and neglect than delinquency cases; in the other 26 courts dependency and neglect cases constituted the smaller part of the court's work. The wide variation in the proportion of dependency and neglect cases appears to be due in part to the extent to which local agencies other than the court were caring for dependent and neglected children. The practice in some courts of filing the complaint against the adult responsible for dependency or neglect instead of instituting proceedings in the name of the children is also a factor. In some localities only those cases of dependency and neglect requiring court action were brought as a rule to the attention of the court, and these usually by social agencies, whereas in other communities a large proportion of the dependent and neglected children were referred to the court directly by parents and relatives, and the court became a general agency for dealing with such children. The proportion of cases of dependency and neglect for which source of complaint was reported, referred to the courts by parents and relatives in different localities, varied from zero to 67 per cent.

¹ The court in New York City sent in only those cases disposed of by the court that had been referred to the court during the year, and only those cases of children discharged from probation or supervision who had been pisaced on probation or under supervision during the year. No cards for girls were received from a few courts in which it is probable that girls' cases had been disposed of. A few courts failed to send in a separate card for each case when a child had been brought before the court more than cone during the year. Elevan courts did not report cases of children discharged from probables or supervision.

TABLE 1.—Number of delinquency cases and of dependency and neglect cases of boys and girls and number of cases of boys and girls discharged from probation or supervision dealt with by 42 specified courts in 1927

				(Custs de	ait with				
Court	Total		quency	cases		endency glect or		disc pro	of ch herged bation o	from
		Total	Boys	Girls	Total	Boys	Girls	Total	Boys	Girls
Total	45, 750	28, 367	21, 264	4, 343	12, 150	14,332	4,132	6, 213	* 3,777	190
California: San Francisco City		om			-	1.1		100	-	
and County	2, 658	950	873	17	687	366	343	431	234	18
Bridgeport	THO	510	440	36	83	30	47	151	140	1
Flartford		810	539	79	154	83	71	301	172	2
Indions:	30	25	14	- 33	4	1	3	10		
Clay County Delaware County		65	47	18				63	43	2
Jennings County		4	4		12	7	- 5			
Lake County	1,063	527	343	184	346	175	273	136	97	5
Merion County	1,322	892	599	303	291	146	145	149	95	. 5
Monroe County	35	15 84	10 54	30	******	*****	******	11 80	84	3
Vermillion County Wayne County		21	15	9	20	14	- 6			
Wells County		41	23	18						
White County		- 3	3		11	5	6			
Masschusstta: Middlesex		1028	1							
County	27	27	26	3	******	100	******		******	
Michigan: Kant County	602	274	374		206	100	108	20	20	
Minnesota: Bennepin County	1,489	966	776	390	342	170	172	181	145	2
Ramsey County		342	270	72	111	52	20	171	183	l i
New Jersey:	100000	1000	1000	186	1000	1	1335	1000	135	1 3
Hudson County	1,930	1,685	1, 482	303				235	204	1 8
Mercer County	317	215	107	16		*****		102	98	1
Buffaio	1.608	836	785	51	95	49	45	145	132	1
Clinton County		23	18	3	79	40	33	l i	1	
Columbia County		198	84	34	121	56	65	41	26	1
Delaware County	14	14	14	*****	*****	energy.	***155*	******	******	
Dutchesa County		223	183	40	271	123	148	34	21 82	1
Franklin County	317	34	159 25	18	54 54	28 16	7	34	- 60	100
New York City	10.450	6, 103	5, 261	840	3, 243	1,743	1,800	1,300	974	30
Orleans County	. 28	0	- 8	1	15	7	1 8	4	- 8	1000
Westehester County	1,766	1, 104	950	154	302	151	153	300	266	3
North Carolina		144	+	-	160	72	88			
Buncombo County	304	344 296	122	72 56	24	2	15			
Othics:	913	480	200	-						
Franklin County	1, 492	583	674	200	232	145	116	347	300	3
Hamilton County	1,361	1,732	1,300	(2)	254	129	134	275	275	
Maloning County	2,017	1,684	1,201	7 293	223	105	138	110	89	2
Pennsylvania:	1 at	48	20		13	4	9	7	3	
Berks County	29	100	6	- 4	17	7	30	2	i	1100
Montgomery County		53	40	13	31	18	13			
Philadelphia	JII. 281	6, 112	6,300	758	3,686	(9)	(9)	1,443	(9)	(9)
Tennessee: Memphis	1, 502	862	672	180	663	328	335	5.7	31	2
Virginia: Nortolk	1, 003	728 126	615	113	186	90	95	30	80	-
Wisconsin: Dane County	194	87	55	33	73	34	20	31	13	

¹ This column shows the total number of eards received from each court. Some duplication occurs between the columns showing delinquency and dependency and seglect cases disposed of and the column showing cases discharged from probation or supervision, since a child may have been placed on probation or under supervision in a delinquency, dependency, or neglect case and discharged from this probation or supervision during 1805.
¹ Not including Philadelphia.

4 Sex not reported.

Cases of children discharged from probation or supervision during the year were reported by 31 courts. Eleven courts did not report cases of children discharged from probation or supervision during the year, and a number reported only a few. Some of these courts had failed to keep adequate probation records, and others took no cognizance of the termination of the probation period either by formal discharge or by removal of the case from the list or index of active probation cases.

The proportions of boys and girls were about equal in dependency cases. In delinquency cases the number of boys reported (24,244) was nearly six times the number of girls (4,143). There was, however, much variation in the proportion of delinquent girls in different localities.

localities.

Methods by which cases were handled.

Information was collected for what are usually described as official and unofficial cases, the same cards being used for both, but separate lists of dispositions were used. Unofficial cases may be defined as cases adjusted informally by the judge, referee, or probation officer without being placed on the court calendar by the filing of a petition or other legal paper for adjudication by the judge or referee. As is shown by the accompanying table (Table 2) the practice of the court in regard to unofficial handling of cases varied in different localities. Twenty-three courts reported delinquency cases disposed of unofficially, and 19 courts did not report any so disposed of. Only 16 of the 34 courts sending information concerning dependency and neglect cases reported such cases disposed of unofficially.

Slightly more than one-fourth of the delinquency cases reported were dealt with unofficially. In four courts handling 50 or more cases (1 in Indiana, 1 in North Carolina, and 2 in Ohio) from 76 to 97 per cent of the delinquency cases were handled unofficially. The total number of cases dealt with by two of these courts was large. In several courts there were differences in the practice of handling of boys' and girls' cases. This was especially marked in two courts. In Marion County, Ind., a much larger proportion of the girls' cases than of the boys' cases were handled unofficially, whereas in San

Francisco, Calif., the situation was reversed.

One-fifth of the dependency and neglect cases reported were dealt with unofficially. In three courts (one in North Carolina, one in Ohio, and one in Tennessee) more than half of the dependency and neglect cases were so dealt with.

CHILDREN INVOLVED IN THE CASES 2

Race and nativity.

As a number of children came before the courts more than once the 28,387 delinquency cases represented 25,456 children and the 12,150 dependency and neglect cases, 11,785 children. Of the 25,305 delinquent children for whom race was reported, 84 per cent were white and 16 per cent colored. As would be expected, the proportion of colored children was larger in the southern courts. In Winston-Salem, N. C., 73 per cent and in Norfolk, Va., 52 per cent of the delinquent children were colored. In the northern and mid-

¹ Tables for about 700 girls' cases not included.

Information used in this section for each delinquent child is based on his first case of delinquency disposed of during the year, and for each dependent or neglected child on his first case of dependency or neglect disposed of during the year.

Table 2.—Number of official and unofficial delinquency cases and dependency and neglect cases dealt with by 42 specified courts during 1927

	1	elinque	енсу сва	es	Dept		y and ne	rglect
Court			Uno	Meinl		200	Une	Meial
	Total	om-	Num- ber	Per cont 1	Total	cial	Num- ber	Per cont
Total	28, 387	20,827	7,500	27	12, 150	9,777	2, 373	50
California: San Francisco City and County	950	738	212	22	687	684	2	
Connecticut:	1 223	833		- 5	3.33	25	1 3	100
Bridgeport	516	331	185	36	.83	.70	13	16
Hartford	618	378	240	39	154	142	12	
Clay County	25	13	12	1.00	4	4		No.
Delaware County		38	27	42				
Jennings County	- 4	4			12	12		******
Lake County	527	341	395	38	348	213	125	30
Marion County	892	670	222	25	291	291	******	
Monroe County	15 84	10	75	60				
Wayne County	24	13	11		20	20		
Weils County	41	12	29					
White County	3	- 3	******		11	7	- 6	
Massachusetts: Middleses County	27	27	******		*****			
Michigan: Kent County	374	374	******		308	308		
Hennepin County	966	995				342		
Ramsey County	342	342	******		111	111	******	
New Jerses:			1000	1000	18.0	S. Kalay	7.5	D. Wall
Hudson County	1, 685 215	1,685	******		*******	******		
New York:	419	***						
Buffaio	636	835	İ		95	95		
Clinton County		19	4		79	48	31	39
Columbia County		97	1	1	121	121		
Delaware County Dutches County		.14		2	******	259	12	******
Erie County		219	The second	-	271 54	54	12	0.33
Franklin County	34	34	*******		24	24		
New York City	6,102	6, 103			3, 243	3,243		
Orienne County		- 8	1	******	15	14	1	
Westchester County	1, 104	657	447	40	302	297	5	2
North Carolina: Bunrombe County	144		120	977	160	57	103	. 64
Winston-Salem	295	255	100	- 41	24	24	100	04
Ohio:		1				-		
Franklin County	883	883			262	262		
Hamilton County		38	1, 294	97	254	114	140	85
Mahoning County.	1,684	408	1,281	76	223	190	33	15
Pennsylvanis: Berks County	45	48	20		13	13		
Lycoming County		10			1 17	17		
Montgomery County	- 53	53	Access.		l ii	31		
Philadelphia	6,152	3,248	2,904	47	3,695	2,312	1,374	37
Tennesses: Memphis	852	601	251	29	653	190	453	71
Virginia: Norfolk	728	728		******	136	195		22
Washington: Pierce County	225	123	27	31	73	79	34	15
maccusin. Dune County		1 00	31	44	19	- 40	30	

¹ Not shown where base is less than 50.

western courts the percentages of colored children varied from zero to 29. Of the 11,737 dependent or neglected children for whom race was reported, dealt with by the 34 courts (both northern and southern) reporting dependency or neglect cases, only 13 per cent were colored, as compared with 16 per cent of the delinquent children.

As might be expected from the differences in the racial groups living in the localities served by the courts, the proportions of children of native parentage and of foreign or mixed parentage coming before the courts showed great variation. Forty-one courts reported nativity and parentage for 18,722 delinquent white children; one court is omitted because it reported an error in its method of checking nativity and parentage. Of the 15,005 boys in this group 39 per cent were native born of native parentage, 51 per cent were native born of foreign or mixed parentage, 4 per cent were native born of parentage not reported, and 6 per cent were foreign born. Of the 2,817 girls 50 per cent were native born of native parentage, 40 per cent were native born of foreign or mixed parentage, 3 per cent were native born of parentage not reported, and 7 per cent were foreign born. Among the 9,796 dependent and neglected white children for whom nativity and parentage were reported by these 41 courts, the proportion of native born of native parentage was much greater (55 per cent) than of native born of foreign or mixed parentage (37 per cent). The proportions of native-born children whose parentage was not reported (3 per cent) and of foreign-born children (6 per cent) were about the same as in delinquency cases.

The proportion of the children dealt with who were foreign born was small for all courts reporting except New York City, where 15 per cent of the delinquent white boys, 19 per cent of the delinquent white girls, and 18 per cent of the dependent and neglected white children, both boys and girls, were reported as foreign born.

Age distribution.

Of the 42 courts reporting to the Children's Bureau 20 had jurisdiction over children up to 16 years of age 3; 2 (Kent County, Mich., and Memphis, Tenn.) had jurisdiction up to 17 years; 7 had jurisdiction up to 18 years '; and the jurisdiction of 1 (San Francisco City and County, Calif.) extended to 21 years. Of the remaining 12 courts 10 had jurisdiction over delinquent, dependent, and neglected boys up to 16, delinquent girls up to 18, and dependent and neglected girls up to 17 5; 1 (Dane County, Wis.) had jurisdiction over delinquent boys up to 17, delinquent girls up to 18, and dependent and neglected children up to 16; and 1 (Middlesex County, Mass.) had jurisdiction over delinquent children between 7 and 17 years and neglected children under 16 years of age.

The age distribution of children dealt with on charges of delinquency by courts having original jurisdiction over children of specified ages is shown in Table 3. The largest percentages of both boys and girls were between 14 and 16 years of age, and the next largest percentages were between 12 and 14 years of age. That the number of girls and boys over 16, however, would probably have been larger had it not been for the limitation of the jurisdiction of many courts to children under that age is evident from the age distribution in courts having jurisdiction beyond 16 years. The inclusion in each group of a few children beyond the age of original jurisdiction specified is explained by the fact that some courts have jurisdiction beyond the age

^{*} Bridgsport and Hartford, Conn.; Hudson County and Mercer County, N. J. (girls up to 17 may be committed by the juvenile court to the State home for girls); Buffalo, Clinton County, Columbia County, Delaware County, Dutchess County, Eris County, Franklin County, New York City, Orienna County, and Westchester County, N. Y.; Buncombe County and Winston-Salem, N. C.; and Berks County, Lycoming County, Montgomery County, and Philadelphia, Pa.

* Recorpia County and Ramsey County, Minn.; Franklin County, Hamilton County, and Mahoning County, Ohio; Norfolk, Va.; and Pierce County, Wash.

* Clay County, Delaware County, Jennings County, Lake County, Marion County, Monroe County, Vermillion County, Wayne County, Wells County, and White County, Ind.

of original jurisdiction in certain situations; for example, a case in which the offense was committed before the age limit was reached, even though the case did not come to the attention of the court until afterwards, and a case in which a child made a ward of the court before reaching the age limit was before the court on a new charge.

JUVENILE-COURT STATISTICS, 1927

Eight per cent of the delinquent boys and 4 per cent of the delinquent girls reported were under 10 years of age. Children of this age group were reported by 35 of the 42 courts. Nearly two-thirds of these boys (971 of the 1,552) were dealt with officially. The situation with regard to girls was similar; 78 of the 152 girls under 10 years were dealt with officially.

TABLE 3 .- Ages of boys and girls dealt with in delinquency cases by 42 courts during 1927, by age limitation of original court jurisdiction

			Children	dealt 1	with by	courts		
		-U	Bar	ving spe orig	cided a	ge limit isdictio	tations m	of
Age and sex of child	To	tal	Und		Upde year		18 yea	er i
	Number	Per cent distri- bu- tion	Num- ber	Per cont distri- bu- tion	Num- ber	Pur cent distri- bu- tion	Num- ber	Per cont distri- bu- tion
Total	25, 436		17, 402		7, 129		865	
Boys	21, 839		15, 243		5,505		791	
Age reported	20, 373	300	14, 268	100	6,327	100	763	100
Under 10 years. 10 years, under 12. 12 years, under 14. 14 years, under 16. 16 years and over.	5, 575	8 15 27 39 11	1, 204 2, 456 4, 391 5, 992 230	8 17 31 62 2	300 600 1,000 1,657 1,602	8 11 20 31 32	19 61 115 260 268	5 8 15 26 37
Age not reported	130000		980		178		8	
Girls	3, 917		2, 219		1,424	115	74	
Age reported	3,713	100	2,071	100	1,573	100	60	100
Under 10 years	201	4 7 21 50 35	102 188 527 1, 186 68	5 9 25 57 3	68 71 238 641 575	3 5 15 41 37	2 2 8 21 36	3 3 12 30 50
Age not reported	204		148		51		6	

Includes Westchester County, N. Y., where jurisdiction extends to 18 in trusney cases; also Hudson County and Mercer County, N. J., where girls up to 17 may be committed to the State school for girls by

As the following table shows, the number of children before the courts on dependency and neglect charges was about the same for each 2-year age period up to 14 when there was a distinct falling off.

Age	Number of children	Per cent distribu- tion
Total.	11,785	
Age reported	10,796	100
Under 2 years. 2 years, under 4. 4 years, under 6. 6 years, under 8. 8 years, under 10. 10 years, under 12. 12 years, under 14. 14 years, under 14.	1, 418 1, 410 1, 204 858 97	11 II I
Age not reported	089	

Whereabouts.6

Two-thirds of the delinquent boys and almost one-half of the delinquent girls for whom whereabouts was reported were living with both own parents when referred to the court. The whereabouts of the delinquent children was as follows:

The Paris of the State of the S	Be	tým mět	O.	iris
Whereabouts	Number	Per cent distribu- tion	Number	Per cent distribu- tion
Total	16, 594		3,006	
Whereabouts reported	16, 256	100	3,040	300
With both own parents. With parent and step-parent. With mother only. In adoptive home. In institution. In other place.		67 9 13 8 (7) 4	1, 454 387 827 198 34 324 68 48	68 13 15 15 11
Whereabouts not reported	326		38	

¹ Less than 1 per cent.

Among the delinquent boys and girls reported as living with only one parent the absence of the other parent, in the majority of instances, was due to death. Almost three-fourths of the boys and the same proportion of the girls living with one parent only were with their mothers. Of the children living with a parent and a stepparent about two-thirds were with a mother and a stepfather, the proportion being slightly higher for boys than for girls.

the juvenile court.

Includes Middlesex County, Mass., Kent County, Mich., and Memphis, Tenn., where jurisdiction is under 17 years, and Dane County, Wis., where jurisdiction is under 17 years for boys.

Includes San Francisco City and County, Calif., only.

44 courts (anchorive of Philadelphia) reported 39 boys and 28 girls as "18 years of age and over."

^{*} Figures are emitted in this section for 1 court in which the proportion of children living with both own parents was so large as to indicate inaccuracy in the reporting of this item.

The following table shows with whom dependent and neglected children were living when referred to the court:

Whereabouts	Number of children	Per cent distribution
Total.	8,618	
Whereabouts reported	8, 521	190
With both own perents. With perent and step-perent With mother only. With father only. In adoptive home. In other family beme In institution In other perents.	1,560	21 4 32 33 13 17 (7)
Whereabouts not reported	97	

Less than 1 per cent.

Among dependent and neglected children living with only one parent, the absence of the other parent was due to death in slightly more than one-fourth of the cases. Desertion was a much greater factor in dependency and neglect than in delinquency, as was also a group of miscellaneous conditions classed as "other" which included separation without divorce and confinement of one parent in a hospital or a correctional institution. Among dependent and neglected children living with their mothers only, the number of instances in which the absence of the father was due to desertion and to "other" conditions was greater than the number due to death. As among delinquent children, the majority of dependent and neglected children living with one parent only were with their mothers.

DELINQUENCY CASES

Sources of complaint.

The source from which cases are received is some indication of the court's relation to the community. It is to be expected that a large proportion of complaints in delinquency cases would be received from the police. The number received from school departments is an indication of the extent to which the school handles its truancy and behavior problems or refers them to the juvenile court. It is necessary to make a distinction between the person or agency that brings the case to the attention of the court or probation office by making the initial complaint and the person who signs the petition or legal paper necessary to institute court action. Since the signing of the petition may be dependent on court policy the former is more significant and was used as the basis of tabulation so far as courts were able to give this information. Some courts, for instance, prefer that the probation officer should not sign such a paper lest his later contact with the family be rendered more difficult thereby.

The police made the complaint in 62 per cent of the delinquency cases for which source of complaint was reported. In one court practically all the complaints (99.6 per cent) were received from the police. In another court only 15 per cent of the complaints were received from this source, the smallest percentage reported by the police in any court. The highest percentages for sources of complaint

other than police in any court reporting 50 or more cases were: Individual other than parent or relative, 57; probation officer, 47; school department, 30; social agency, 8.

The sources of complaint in delinquency cases were as follows:

Source of comptaint	Number	Per cent distribution
Total	28, 387	
Source of complaint reported	27, 967	100
Police Parents or relatives Other individual (not probation officer) School department Probation officer Social agency Other source of completes	37, 319 1, 775 1, 749 1, 002 804 693 965	69 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
Source of complaint not reported	420	

Place of care pending hearing or disposition.

In more than half the delinquency cases, as is shown by Tables 4 and 5, the children were not detained but were allowed to remain in their own homes pending hearing, or their cases were disposed of on the day the complaint was made. Detention was not used to any extent in most of the smaller courts; in the larger courts the practices varied considerably. The cases in which children remained in their own homes or which were disposed of within one day varied in courts handling 50 or more cases from 97 per cent of all the cases in Winston-Salem, N. C., to 27 per cent in Hamilton County, Ohio. Twenty-four of the forty-two courts used boarding homes for children who were not left in their own homes pending hearing, but the number of children thus cared for was very small. Detention homes and other institutions (including receiving homes or shelters of private agencies and hospitals) were used in more than one-third of the delinquency cases in which place of care was reported. The courts reporting the greatest use of detention homes were those in Hamilton County, Ohio, Montgomery County, Pa., and Memphis, Tenn. New York City, which does not maintain a municipal detention home. using instead the shelter of a private agency, reported the majority of the cases in which children were cared for in other institutions.

Almost a thousand children (4 per cent of the number for whom place of care was reported) were held in jails or police stations pending hearing or disposition of their cases. Cases of jail or police-station detention were reported by 26 courts; 69 per cent of the cases so detained were reported by 3 courts. If all these cases were of actual detention overnight or longer these figures would represent a serious situation. But from a comparison of the dates on which the cases had been referred to and disposed of by the courts, it was evident that a few courts reported detention care when the child was held in the jail or police station for a few hours pending arrival of parents or attention from the court. Included in these figures also were 158 cases in which the child was held for only part of the detention period in the jail or police station and the remainder of the time elsewhere. Although the largest numbers of children detained in jail were reported by courts having jurisdiction over children up to 18

years of age, many young children had been detained. Seventy detained children were under 14 years of age, 305 were between 14 and 16 years, and 590 were 16 years of age or over.

Table 4 .- Place of care pending hearing or disposition of case in delinquency cases dealt with by 42 specified courts during 1927

				Della	quency	CHECK			
					Place	of care			
Court	Total	Own heme or case dis- pased of same day	Board- ing home	Deten- tion home	Other lasti- sution ³	Jall or police sta- tion 3	More than 1 place of care 4	Other place of ours	Not re- parted
Total,	28, 387	14, 751	69	5, 585	8, 20t	979	274	112	3, 436
California: San Francisco City and County Counceticut: Bridgeport	950 316	527 472	6	334	15	21 19		22	25
Hartised	616	551	3	58	5			1	
Clay County Delaware County Jennings County	05 65	20	2	27		9			
Lake County	527 892 15	438 705	10	53 152	2 2	14 20	T I	4 7	1
Vermillion County	54 24	75 18	6	1	í	i		*******	
Wells County White County	41	36			*******				
White County Massachusetts: Middlesos County Mighigan: Kent County Minnesota:	374	25 110	1	381					
Hennepin County Ramsey County	905 342	810 167	1 2	83 83	13	63 100	3	5	18
Naw Jessey: Hudson County Mercer County	1, 683 215	1, 171	8	800	3	17		3 1	2
New York: Buffnio. Clinton County Columbia County	838 23 98	826 16 81		300 7 10	4	2			
Deleware County Dutchess County Eric County Franklin County	34	14, 208 144 25	5 3 2	1	3 21 4	4	6	2000	
New York City		2, 751 778	i		2, 957	1	191	30	340
North Carolina: Bunesmbe County Winston-Salem	144 295	131 288	1	1	1	3			
Obie: Franklin County Hamilton County Mahoming County Pennsylvania:	A83 1,332 1,684	302 353 1, 028	1 3	335 945 261	1 11	221 25 358	18 1 1	2 2 10	3 6 33
Berks County	48 10	35 7	i	11		1			
Montgomery County. Philadelphia. Tennessee: Memobile. Virginia: Norfolk. Washington: Pierce County. Wisconsin: Dane County.	853	17 1, 844 368 377 58 62	2	543 274	13 6 6 1 7	64 9 3	T	5 5 1 2	2,915

A larger percentage of the boys than of the girls were permitted to remain in their own homes, or their cases were disposed of on the same day. (Table 5.) Detention homes or other institutions were used more frequently in girls' cases than in boys' cases, but in only 2 per cent of the girls' cases as compared with 4 per cent of the boys' cases were the offenders detained in jail or police station.

Table 5 .- Places of care pending hearing or disposition of delinquency cases of boys and girls dealt with by 42 courts during 1927

			Delinque	ncy casus		
Place of care	TY	otal	В	178	G	rte
	Number	Per cent distribu- tion	Number	Per cent distribu- tion	Number	Per cent distribu- tion
Total	25, 387		24, 244		4, 143	
Places of care reported	24, 1/71	100	21, 220	100	3,730	300
Own home or case disposed of same day. Bearding home. Detention home or other institution. Detention home. Other institution. Jail or police station. Only place of onre. One of the places of care. More than one pince of care. Other place of care.	3, 300 979 831 188 1374	(7) 385 222 13 4 2 3 1 (7)	12,880 40 7,188 4,611 2,672 898 747 151 2214 47	(7) 3H 222 13 4 4 4 1 1	1,901 29 1,608 1974 639 81 74 7	81 1 43 26 17 2 2 (7)
Places of care not reported	+3,416		3, 012		404	

Charges.

Though an attempt is being made to secure uniformity in the use of terms, the charges on which children were dealt with as delinquents by the courts give a very incomplete picture of their behavior problems. A child may have committed several offenses at or about the same time but be referred to court on only one of them. The specific offense with which he is charged may be much less serious than offenses discovered in the course of the social investigation. When the case is investigated before the filing of a petition instead of afterward the formal charge is usually more accurate, but even in such cases the offense stated in the complaint may reflect the desire of the court to protect the child. For instance, in some courts a girl is charged with incorrigibility instead of a sex offense, and a boy with trespassing and taking the property of another instead of with "breaking and entering" or "burglary."

As is shown by the recorded offenses the boys and girls present

quite different delinquency problems. More than two-thirds of the boys were charged with stealing or with acts of carelessness or mischief. With the girls "running away," "ungovernable or beyond parental control," and "sex offense" were the most frequent charges, two-thirds of them having been charged with these offenses.

¹ Including cases of children cared for part of the time in detention bonte and the remainder of the time elsewhere, but not including cases of children also held at jall or police station.
² Including cases of children cared for in receiving bone or shelter of private agency and other institution.
³ Including cases of children cared for part of the time in police station or juli and the remainder of the

Not including detention home, police station, or jail. Place of one not reported for unofficial cases. According to information received from the court chil-

Less than 1 per capt.
 Including cases of children cared for part of the time in detention home and the remainder of the time elsewhere, but not including cases of children also hold at juil or police station.
 Not including detention home, police station, or juil.
 Including Philadelphia's unofficial cases for which place of care was not reported.

Truspey

Per Num-Per Num Por Num-

.

(1)

Per Num-

cent.

1,839

32 (9 22

61

82

Stealing or attempted stealing

Num-

10,033

12 11

164

162

20 30

Total.

24, 244

539

1,412

84 14

Total

24, 056

539

270

1, 482

Court

California: San Francisco City and County. Connecticut: Bridgoport. Bactlord.

Britised

Indiana:
Clay County
Delaware County
Jennings County
Lake County
Marion County
Wester County
Wester County
Wester County
Wester County
Wester County
White County
White County
Mineson:
Henney's County
Mineson:
Henney's County
New Jecsey:

Ramsey County
New Jersey:
Hudson County
Mercer County
New York:
Buffalo
Clinton County
Columbia County
Deleware County
Deleware County
Deleware County

Total.

Boys' delinquency cases

Ungovern-

able or be-youd perso-tal control

ber cent per

30

61

36

1,733

ā

Ÿ

ž

Running

away

ber

a

1 2

Charge on which referred to court

10

ž

13

ï

Sex offense

Per

1 2

ń

ä.

Injury or attempted injury to person

Num-Per Num

Έ

Act of care-

leaguess or mischief

ber cent

240

 Other

Per

Per Num-

13

13

(9)

ï Not re-

URT STATISTICS, 1927
STATISTICS, 1927
8, 1927
927

Brie County	159	158	75	47			4	3	13	. 6
New York City	8, 202	5, 106	2, 105	41	48	1	003	13	419	. 6
Orleans County	980	950	295	31	180	20	16	3	83	8
forth Carolina: Buncombe County	122 239	122 235	71 95	58 40	20 66	1/5 28	ł	(7)	4	3
blo: Franklin County	074 1,332 1,391	073 1, 330 1, 391	372 567 642	25 44 32	80 49 241	13 4 17	16 100 90	2 8 6	48 51 112	7 4 8
ennsylvania; Berks County Lyceming County Montgomery County Philadelphia	30 6 40 4,386 672	30 6 40 5, 306 666	26 3 28 2,038	38	1 4 272	5 10	1 540	10	367	
ennessee: Memphis. legislar Norfolk. eshington: Pierce County		613 'V8 88	902 194 00 36	38 39 32 61 65	65 22 9 3	10 6 9 5	113 24 4 2	4	36 30 4	1

Not shown	selvare.	Tunto 1	a base	than In.

ı		6	17	16		*****	1
Ü	245	5	1,483	19	104		100
ř	23	2	300	33	24	8	
	11	9	22 44	30 39	2 7	2 8	
-	16 19 38	1 3	48 349 374	7 96 27	17 128 60	10 4	1 2
-	5		7		2		
-	144 50 34	3 0 6	1, 827 97 363 9 12	34 13 40 9 22	213 24 42 0	4 4 7 0	0 2

ч.
а.
~
TIMEYU
8
×
=
Е.
8
Q
0
COURT
긆
23
7
-
99
12
2
н
ь.
94
3
=
346
STATISTICS,
60
-
63
1927

								Gi	is' deli	nques	ny ou	66							
,								Cha	nge on	wbich	referm	ed to e	ourt		COMO?				
Court	Total	Total re-	Steali attex ates	poled	Tru	посу		ning 'ay				dense	atten	ry or apted ry to man	leasn	d care- est or chief	OI	ther	Not m
		ported	Nom-	Per cent 3	Num- ber	Per cent	Num- ber		Number	Per cent s	Number	T'er cont*	Num- ber	Per cent	Num- ber	Per cent		Per cent	1
Total	4,143	4, 105	525	13	430	10	760	19	1,130	28		-	114	3	283	7	89	2	1
alifornia: San Francisco City and County onneolicut: Bridgeport	76	77 76	4 31	41	8	5 11	25 6	32 8 3	17	22 17					10	1 13	5	6	
Hartford odiana Clay County	n	11	22	28		6	3		15	19			3			3	1	1.0	
Delaware County Lake County Marien County Monree County	363	183 183 303 2	14	14	14	7	25	14	153	12 50			- 5	2	16	2 5	10	1 3	
Wayne County	9 18	- 30 9 18	3		3		2 2		3	*****			2		1		2		
fassachusetts: Middlenex County (Innesota: Hennepin County	190	100	21	11	17	0			71	37			3	2	0	3	18	0	
Rameey County	203	263 18	7 3	15	101	10	6 3	3	20	52 28			1	2	3	1	1	(1)	
Buffalo Cilnton County	51 5	41 5	:0	100000			16	27	10 2	20							1	2	
Datebes County	14 41 38	14 40 17	5 2		18		1		9				····j		1 2		-		
Franklin County. New York City. Oriona County. Weschester County.	847	812 1 154	136	17		1	275	34	213	34			36		40	- 6 - 11	7	Ti.	

North Carolina: Buncombe County	22 56	22 55	2 14	25	13	24	5 2		1	19
Ohie: Prankiln County Mahoning County	209 203	209 292	17 26	8 9	15 72	25	11 19	4 7	31 67	15 23
Pennsylvanis: Berks County	9 4 13	9 4 13	8				1		902	
Philadelphia Tennessee: Mamphia Virginia: Norfolk Washington: Pleese County	13 756 180 113 28 32	13 755 179 113 28 31	21	10 12 0	18	10 5	45	25	38 49 3	27 21 63
Washington: Piece County	32	31	- 5		1				12	

⁴ Only 37 of the 42 courts reported girls' delinquency cases.

_	_	_		
t West	chages	m'have	base to t	tage th

·····i	7	1	20	11	2	2
·····I	1	4	(1)	1 35	2	····a

	3	30 5 1	13 7 9	100 13 10	6 17	10 10 10
,						

The great variation in the types of offenses with which children were charged in the different courts, as is shown by Tables 6 and 7. indicates differences in the attitude and practices of the court as well as in social conditions. For example, in boys' cases (Table 6) stealing constituted 42 per cent of all cases and was the most frequent charge in all except five courts reporting 50 or more cases. In Mercer County, N. J., stealing was the charge in 82 per cent of the boys' cases and acts of carelessness or mischief in 3 per cent; in Dutchess County, N. Y., stealing was the charge in 22 per cent of the cases and acts of carelessness or mischief in 46 per cent. Acts of carelessness or mischief were reported more often than stealing in Bridgeport and Hartford, Conn.; Dutchess County and Westchester County, N. Y.; and Norfolk, Va. Apparently in some courts the charge for petty stealing is "mischief" rather than "stealing." Although charges of truancy represented only 8 per cent of all charges they formed 20 per cent or more of the cases reported by Hudson County, N. J.; Westchester County, N. Y.; and Winston-Salem, N. C. Other charges constituting rather large proportions of the cases in certain courts were "running away," 17 per cent in Memphis, Tenn., as compared with 7 per cent in all the courts; "sex offense," 11 per cent in Lake County, Ind., and 10 per cent in Franklin County, Ohio, as compared with 2 per cent in all the courts.

Variations similar to those in boys' cases were evident in the types of offenses with which girls (Table 7) were charged. Five of the courts reporting 50 or more girls' cases showed an unusually large proportion of cases in which girls were referred to the court as runaways. These courts were San Francisco City and County (32 per cent), Buffalo (27 per cent), New York City (34 per cent), Philadelphia (33 per cent), and Memphis (26 per cent). Stealing was the charge in only 13 per cent of all the girls' cases but was the most frequent charge in three courts, occurring in 41 per cent of the girls' cases in Bridgeport, Conn., in 51 per cent in Buffalo, N. Y., and in 25 per cent in Winston-Salem, N. C. Similarly, although charges of truancy formed only 10 per cent of all charges in girls' cases, they constituted 50 per cent of the cases in Hudson County, N. J., and 34 per cent of the cases in Westchester County, N. Y., 29 per cent of the cases in Winston-Salem, N. C., and 25 per cent of the cases in Mahoning County, Ohio. Other charges which were reported in large proportions by certain courts were "injury to person" in Norfolk, Va.; "carelessness or mischief" in Winston-Salem, N. C.; "ungovernable" in Marion County, Ind., Ramsey County, Minn., and Norfolk, Va.; and "sex offense" in Lake County, Ind., and Franklin County, Ohio. The contrast between Lake County, Ind., and Marion County, Ind., so far as the charges "ungovernable" and "sex offense" are concerned, is especially striking. In Lake County the charge was "ungovernable" in 12 per cent of the girls' cases and "sex offense" in 55 per cent; in Marion County it was "ungovernable" in 50 per cent and "sex offense" in 11 per cent. This contrast no doubt reflects in some measure a difference in stating the charge rather than in the types of offenses reported to the courts.

Dispositions.

Official cases.—An analysis of the dispositions, which were reported for 20,679 of the 20,827 delinquency cases dealt with officially by the 42 courts, shows that nearly nine-tenths were (1) dismissed or

continued indefinitely (35 per cent), (2) placed on probation (39 per cent), or (3) committed to institutions for delinquent children (15 per cent). A number of different but related methods of treatment of delinquent children are included under each of these terms. For example, the entry "case dismissed" was made for cases closed without any further action, cases referred to other courts for commitment to institutions for the feeble-minded, and cases dismissed because of lack of jurisdiction in the juvenile court. Cases were considered as "continued indefinitely" when no further action was taken or supervision given the children but when jurisdiction was maintained so that if a like situation arose later the case might be brought into court again without the filing of a new petition. Cases of children placed on probation to parents or committed to institutions with commitment suspended when no further action was contemplated were also classed as "continued indefinitely."

The dispositions of 20,827 official delinquency cases were as follows (the numbers and per cent distribution for boys and girls are shown

in Tables 8 and 9 respectively):

Disposition reported 28, 827 Dismissed or continued indefinitely 7, 179 Child placed on probation 8, 261 Child committed to institution for delicquent children 8, 646 Restitution, fine, or costs. 1, 260 Fine imposed or process of costs ordered 8, 1, 260 Fine imposed or process of costs ordered 8, 1, 260 Child committed to reparation ordered 9, 263 Child placed under supervision of individual other than probation officer 286 Child committed to other institution, or agency 866 Child committed to other institution, or agency 866 Child returned home 1, 174 Child returned for criminal procedution 8, 286 Child returned for criminal procedution 8, 287 Child returned for criminal procedution 9, 287 Child returned for criminal 9, 287 Child returned for criminal 9, 287 Child returned 1, 287 Child returned 1, 287 Child returned 1, 287 Child returned 1, 287 Child retur	Disposition	Number	Per cent distribution
Dismissed or continued indefinitaly	Total	29, 827	
Child placed on probation . 8, 361 Child committed to institution for delicement children . 8, 365 Restitution, fine, or costs 1, 300 Fine imposed or payment of costs ordered	Disposition reported	20, 679	10
Dispesition not reported	Child pinced on probation . Child committed to institution for delicement children . Restitution, fine, or costs. Fine imposed or payment of costs ordered . Restitution or reparation ordered . Other disposition . Child placed under supervision of individual other than probotion officer . Child committed to other institution . Child committed to board, department, or agency . Child returned home ! Child returned in criminal procedurion .	8, 361 8, 646 1, 302 684 318 1, 061	88
	Dispesition not reported	145	

Applies only to runaways or children living away from own home at the time referred to court.

*Less than 1 per cent.

The courts showed wide variation in the extent to which different types of dispositions were used. Such variations are due in many instances to differences in court procedure and practice. For instance, the number of official cases dismissed or continued indefinitely is small if cases are investigated before the filing of a petition and trivial cases are dealt with unofficially or dropped. The proportion of cases in which the child is placed on probation is influenced by several factors, among them the number of cases dismissed or continued indefinitely upon first hearing, the extent to which unofficial probation is used, the local institutions available for short-time commitments, and the care with which children are selected for probation both as to those likely to profit by it and as to the court's facilities for giving such supervision.

Analysis of the percentages of cases disposed of in various ways by courts handling 50 or more official cases shows more clearly the variations from court to court. Each of the courts reported some cases dismissed or continued indefinitely. The percentage so disposed of ranged from 5 in Mercer County, N. J., to 54 in Memphis, Tenn.

1						Boys' affic	int delings	tency cases					
7.							Dispo	altica					
Court	Total	Total reported		ed or con- definitely	Child prot	daced on ation	to instit	mmitted ution for at children		ion, fine, xeta	QE	her	Not reported
		Importation	Number	Per cent !	Number	Per cent !	Number	Per ceat !	Number	Per cont	Number	Per cent 1	
Total	17, 728	17, 610	0,344	30	6, 892	39	2,430	14	1, 181	7	808	5	128
California: San Francisco City and County. Connecticut:	063	632	324	51	1.59	25	127	20			22	3	21
Bridgeport	277 320	275 320	87 129	32 40	150 175	55 55	26 12	1	10 1	(1) 4	2 3	1	2
Clay County	7	7			23				200		r		
Lake County Marion County Monroe County	202 824	272 823	81 74	28 14	71 209	31 64	80 305 7	26 26	63	(9)	38 22	17	i
Vermillen County Wayne County Wells County	8 4	8 4			2 4 2		3		ï		1		
White County Manachusetts: Middless: County Michigan: Kent County Minnessta:	24 374	36 373	123	33	24 195	45	80	ia	30	5	14		i
Hennepin County	776 270	778 289	355 25	45	341 195	44 72	75 37	10 14			5 12	1	i
Hudson County Mercer County New York:	1, 483 197	1, 481	412 5	41	281 143	19 73	118 43	15 22	61 6	34	9	1	1
Buffalo. Clinton County	785	785	412	82	149	19	136	17	12	11	1	(7)	
Columbia County Delaware County Dutcheste County Erie County Franklin County New York City Orleans County Wasichester County	15 80 14 179 169 25 5, 202 8 862	15 83 14 179 159 25 8, 190 8	39 1 61 23 8 2,499 3 200	47 34 14 48	10 10 48 111 2 1,773 3 225	13 27 70 34	5 2 21 11 19 8 800	11 11	10 10	27 23 6	6 1 15 6 10 29 1	8 6 4	72

North Carollus: Buncombe County Winston-Salem	229	230	65		121	51	27	i
Ohlo: Franklin County Hamilton County Maheeing County	674 36 335	674 36 335	48	7 27	452 0 138	41	143 21 54	;
Pennsylvania: Berks County. Lycoming County Montgomery County Philadelphia. Tennesses Memphia. Virginia: Norfolia. Washington; Pieros County Wisconin: Done County	39 8 40 2,808 459 615 97 30	39 6 40 2, 808 483 614 97 50	4 1 2 807 270 175 233 7	71 65 20 21 14	17 10 1, 654 48 213 15 40	52 10 36 36 80	38 5 15 334 119 18 19	

Per cent not shown where base is less than 50.

Table 9 .- Dispositions in girls' official delinquency cases dealt with by 56 speci

						Girls' offic	ial delings	escy es
							Dispo	eltion
Court	Total	Total	Dismiss tloued in	d or con- definitely	Child p	inced on edito	Obtid or to instit delinques	ution to
		reported	Number	Per cent !	Number	Per cent !	Number	Per con
Total	1,089	3,000	835	27	1, 200	41	636	
California: San Francisco City and County Connecticut: Bridgeport	75 54 56	75 64 58	27 26 13	88 21	17 19 25	23 35 43	10 5 19	
Harthord Tadians: Jaunty ura Cou County: g County se County Hion County e County	0 11 109 145 3 6	0 11 309 345 3 6 6	1 39 9	38 6	9 33 334 1 1 5	511 78		

y 37 of the 42 courts reported girls' delinquency cases and 1 court did not report girls' cases disposed of officially.

8	2	ii ···	b
35	1 10	24 0 18	
3 32 12 135 5	(t) 22 5	1 291 36 68 15 2	14 7 11 11 14

erts during 1927 1

Not reported	her	Ot	ion, fine, osts	
	Per cent !	Number	Per cent !	ber
200	9	188	2	51
	28	21		
	- T	4 2		
	26 4			

Inala 9.—Dispositions in girls' official delinquency cases dealt with by 36 specified courts during 1987.—Continued

Court					Oiris' offic	ini delings	Oiris' official delinguency cases					
Total						Dispesition	sition					
	Total		Dismissed or eac-	Child placed of prehation	and on	Child committed to institution for delinquent children	mmitted stion for tehildren	Restitution, or casts	ion, fine, asts	8	Other	Net
		Number	Per cess:	Number	Per cent	Number	Per cent	Number	Per cent	Number	Per cent	
Messebusetts: Middleser County												
Minneofa: Bannopin Control 7.77	82	- th	83	&R	\$0	818	80					
	En	-	9	H.	*	g-	9	E	×	10	4	
	4.		þ	S.	#	034	Ħ		*			
	. 4 11			141-		0.00		•		*=*		
	-Fig	-5a	NB	36	28	-EB	AB			458	f-8	1 1
Buncembe County.	- 55	13	35	31	38	-100	-				22	ľ
Pranklin Ceasty	60	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	F 22	88	216	99	នាត		-	No.	*11	ľ
County						04				-		
	11.23		51.6	- 15	**	-#5	III	I	8	**2:	RS	
Virginis: Norisk.	ERS	IN+		#""	#	121		12	10	**	in	

and was more than 40 per cent in six other courts. Similarly the child was placed on probation in 39 per cent of all cases, but for individual courts this percentage ranged from 12 per cent in Memphis, Tenn., to 77 per cent in Dane County, Wis. In 10 courts the children dealt with were placed on probation in more than half the cases.

Although commitments to institutions for delinquent children were made in only 15 per cent of all cases the proportion of such commitments was more than 20 per cent in seven courts. Orders for restitution, fines, and payment of costs when not accompanied by more significant dispositions, such as probation, were resorted to in a small proportion (6 per cent) of the cases. In four courts, however, such orders were made in about one-fifth of the cases.

Tables 8 and 9 show the extent to which different types of dispositions were used in boys' and in girls' cases. In general, the dispositions of boys' and girls' cases showed no striking differences except in a few courts. Although 36 per cent of the boys' cases and only 27 per cent of the girls' cases were dismissed or continued indefinitely, in Bridgeport, Conn., 32 per cent of the boys' cases and 48 per cent of the girls' cases, and in Lake County, Ind., 26 per cent of the boys' cases and 36 per cent of the girls' cases were so disposed of. Probation was used in a slightly larger proportion of the girls' cases than of the boys' cases, but in 10 of the 17 courts which reported a total of 50 or more girls' cases probation was used more frequently in boys' cases. This was especially noticeable in Bridgeport, Conn., and Ramsey County, Minn. In 14 per cent of the boys' cases as compared with 20 per cent of the girls' cases the child was committed to an institution for delinquent children. This difference between the sexes in the use of such institutions was even greater in Hartford, Conn., and in Ramsey County, Minn. In the former 4 per cent of the boys' cases and 33 per cent of the girls' cases and in the latter 14 per cent of the boys' cases and 49 per cent of the girls' cases were disposed of by commitment to such institutions. Commitments to other institutions or to agencies and use of individuals other than parents or court officers for supervision, which formed part of the group "other disposition" were most commonly used in Lake County, Ind., and Philadelphia, Pa., for boys; and in San Francisco City and County,

instances all of these types of dispositions.

A study of the relation of charges to dispositions in official cases as shown in Table 10 (boys' cases) and Table 11 (girls' cases) reveals some interesting facts as to methods of treatment of different types of offenses.\(^7\) Table 10 shows that in boys' cases dismissal or indefinite continuance was the type of disposition most often used where the charge was injury or attempted injury to person (63 per cent), acts of carelessness or mischief (59 per cent), running away (37 per cent), and a group of miscellaneous charges classified as "other" (59 per cent). Probation was used more often than any other type of disposition in the cases of boys charged with stealing (47 per cent), truancy (36 per cent), sex offense (51 per cent), violating a liquor or drug law (47 per cent), and being ungovernable or beyond parental control (42 per cent). Commitment to an institution for delinquent children

Calif.; Lake County, Ind.; Westchester County, N. Y.; and Philadelphia, Pa., for girls. Each of these courts reported one and in some

³ These tables are based on the cases reported by the 42 courts that sent cards to the bureau and do not include figures for Philadelphia, which reported on standard table forms in place of cards.

F = 1 / 1/2								1	Boys' o	Meial	delinq	uency	CES ES								
									Che	rge on	which	reform	d to co	urt							T
Disposition	Total	Stes 0 atten sten	ptod	Trui	ысу		ning	Ungo able bey pure con	ond ond		ex 00150	Inb	ry or opted ury enson		care- ess or blef	drug or la	lating for or g law stoul- tion	Ot	ber		tot
in		Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- ber	Per cont dis- tribu- tion	Number	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- bar	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tlu	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Number	Per cent dis- tribu tlon	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tibn
Total	14,900	6,740	Lines.	1, 210	****	861	*****	1,991	****	355	arva	551	42.00	ī		99	****	203	*****	177	****
Disposition reported	14,802	6, 637	100	1, 207	100	852	100	1, 192	100	350	100	546	30	3	100	DE	100	301	100	163	100
Dismissed	4, 572 875	1,562	23	293 139	22 12	284 32	33	347 82	21 7	73 24	21	335 40		3	54	92 13	22 13	111	50	163 5	51
Restitution or reparation ordered. Fine or payment of costs	833	138	2 2	93	8			3	(7)	1	(7)	19		i	18	4	4	37	13	ā	
prosecution. Child placed on probation. Child placed under supervision of individual other than pro-	6, 438	2, 141	67	432	36	284	33	496	42	180	61	188	-	ł	(7)	46	47	ni	15	69	30
Dation Coscar	192	66	1	28	2	11	1	22	2	8	2	3		5	(9)	1 5	5		2		
Child committed to board, de- partment, or agency. Child committed to institution	61	16	(9)	8	1	8	1	14	1	4	1				(7)					1	1
Child committed to institution for dellaquest children. State institution. County or city institution. Private institution. Type not reported. Child committed to other insti-	2,086 770 466 571 277	1, 203 509 351 265 156	18 8 4 4 2	218 57 171 25 12	18 5 9 3	190 54 55 60 50	22 6 8 7 6	303 88 40 143 34	26 7 3 12 8	48 27 4 13 4	H	20 0 10 4 3			6,1	3 3	722	13 5 2 5 1	6 2 1 2 (1)	20 4 3 9 4	11
Child committed to other insti- tation. Child returned home i Other disposition. Disposition not reported	54 50 33 128	24 6 12 63	88	3 2 4 3	88	35 0	ł	16 1 2 0	8	3 6	(r) 1	1 1 6	8	i	(7)	1	i	1 3 2	(1)	14	

³ Philadelphia not included.

en homes at the time referred to court.

Table 11.—Charge, by type of disposition, in girls' official delinquency cases dealt

A - Comment of the control of the co								Gli	is' offic	rial d
				2				Char	ge on t	which
Disposition	Total	atten	ing or upted ding	Tru	шку		ining	ab) bey	wern- e or ond entel stroi	Sex
		Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Number	Per cent dis- tribu- tlen	Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- her	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Nun
Total	2, 649	381		267		417		723		800
Disposition reported	2, 629	379	100	266	100	414	100	718	100	500
Dismissed Continued indefinitely	588 149	107 23	28	102 88	38 12	84 21	20 5	108 42	1ñ 6	70
Restitution or reparation ordered	44	1	(1)	24	9	T.	(0)	""I	(9)	
Child reterred for criminal prosecution. Child piaced on probation.	1,006	181	48	85	32	178	63	327	46	22
Child placed under supervision of individual other than probation officer	79 34	114	3	7	(7)	30 5	2	25 7	3	1
Child committed to institution for delloquent chil- dren	578	45	13	13		89	21	104	27	23
State institution. County or city institution. Private institution. ps not reported.	229 77 214 88	19 4 36 7	5 1 4 2	5 7 1	3 (1)	11 7 50 15	3 2 34 4	26 29 86 23	8 4 12 3	13 2 4 1
emmitted to other institution	33 32 38	1	(9)	i	(9)	22 2	(f) (f)	12 4	(f)	1
not rep	20	3		1		3				

orted girls' delinquency cases; one court did not report girls' cases disposed of officiality; fi hown where base is less than 50.

If of the sorted girls' delinquency cases; one court did not report girls' cases di not light bown where base is less than 50.

In the court did not report girls' cases di not less than 50.

In the court did not report girls' cases di not less than 50.

35 courts during 1927

y cas	es .		3.4			
to co	urt		14			
Injuration injuration per	ry to	lesso	f cure- esu or oblef	Vielat- ing liquor or drug	Other	Not re-
Num- ber	Per cent dis- tribu- tion	Num- ber	Per eant dis- tribu- tion	intexi- eation (num- ber) ³	(num- ber) ²	(num- bor) 1
78		96		28	29	33
78	100	90	100	26	28	33
40	81 5	67	62 7	4	8 5	8
8	30	7	8		1	
22	28	20	22	34	10	17
1	1	i		3	i	
1	1	1	1	4	3	. 1
···i	····i	1	1		3	

				ī		
		4			1	,

r Philadelphia are not included in this table.

⁴ Less than 1 per cent.

^{*} Applies only to runsways or children living away

was reported in 26 per cent of the cases of boys described as ungovernable or beyond parental control and in 22 per cent of the cases in which the boy was charged with running away. Fines or costs were ordered chiefly in the cases of boys charged with acts of carelessness or mis-

chief (16 per cent). As is shown in Table 11, the treatment of girls for certain offenses was similar to that of boys. Dismissal or indefinite continuance was the disposition most frequently used in cases where the offense was injury to person (56 per cent) or act of carelessness or mischief (69 per cent); probation was used more often than any other type of disposition in the cases of girls charged with stealing (48 per cent), and with being ungovernable (46 per cent); and the proportions of cases in which girls were committed to institutions for delinquent children as ungovernable (27 per cent), or as runaways (21 per cent), were about the same as those for boys. In girls' cases, however, dismissal or indefinite continuance was the disposition most frequently used when the charge was truancy (50 per cent) and probation when the charge was running away (43 per cent). Commitment to an institution was used proportionately more frequently for sex offenses of girls than for any other offense among either boys or girls; the contrast in treatment of boys and of girls for this offense is striking. In 14 per cent of the cases of boys charged with sex offenses the boy was committed to an institution for delinquent children and in 51 per cent he was placed on probation, whereas in 37 per cent of the cases of girls who were sex delinquents the girl was committed to an institution for delinquent children and in 36 per cent she was placed on probation. On the other hand, when truancy was the charge, children were sent to such institutions in only 5 per cent of the girls' cases as compared with 18 per cent of the boys' cases, and girls less frequently than boys were committed to institutions on charges of stealing. The percentages of institution commitments for the two sexes were about

the same in cases of runaways and ungovernable children.

Unofficial cases.—Of the 7,525 unofficial delinquency cases for which
the disposition was reported more than one-half (58 per cent) were
closed because the difficulty was adjusted; in approximately oneseventh (14 per cent) the children were placed unofficially under the
supervision of probation officers; and a large proportion of the remaining cases were apparently dropped without action of any sort ("dismissed" or "no action taken" was frequently reported under "other
disposition").

The following table shows the dispositions of unofficial delinquency cases dealt with by the 23 courts reporting such cases:

Disposition	Number	Per cent distribu- tion
Total	7,500	
Disposition reported	7,525	100
Piacament of child in institution recommended. Piacament of child showhers recommended. Child placed on unofficial protestion. Referred to agency or other court. Child returned home t. Difficulty adjusted. Other disposition. Disposition not reported.	200 72 1, 073 176 286 4, 356 1, 379 as	3 14 2 4 58 38

²Applies only to runsways or children living away from own home at the time returned to court.

As is shown by Table 12, with the exception of cases in which children were charged with running away and simply returned home, and the four cases of girls charged with violating liquor or drug laws, "difficulty adjusted" was the disposition most frequently reported for all types of offenses both in boys' cases and in girls' cases. More than half the cases in which boys were charged with injury to person, mischief, and miscellaneous offenses classified as "other," and more than half the cases in which girls were charged with stealing, truancy, injury to person, mischief, being ungovernable, and miscellaneous offenses were so disposed of. Unofficial probation was used more frequently for boys than for girls.

Table 12.—Charge, by disposition and sex of child, in unofficial delinquency cases dealt with by 22 courts during 1927 1

				Une	(Belol	deling	nengy cra	66			
DHITTE III				Ct	euille or	whiel	referred	to cou	nt		
Disposition	Total	Steeling or at- tempted steeling	Tru- ancy	Run- ning away	Un- gov- ern- able or be- yond pa- rental con- trol	Gest of- fense	Injury or at- tempted injury to per- son	Act of care-less act aris-	Vio- leting liquor or drug law	Other	Charge not re- ported
Total	4,656	1, 223	474	424	470	216	145	1,343	57	186	18
Boys	3,118	1, 255	357	334	265	91	113	1, 256	53	175	13
Total reported	3,660	1, 245	353	330	262	90	119	1, 350	53	175	13
Pincement of child in institution rec- ommended Pincement of child elsewhere recom-	144	85		20	11		3	12	3		
Child placed on un-	54	34	4	7		1		3	1		
official probation Referred to approx	753	393	68	17	63	22	20	117	17	30	
or other court	101	45	9	15	. 6	4		11	2	1	1
Child returned home !	197 1,686 943	15 421 254	2 142 124	178 69 21	95 81	39 20	70 24	749 358	18 11	01 48	
Disposition not reported.	28	10	4		. 3	. 1					
Girls	738	68	117	90	205	125	26	87	4	11	1
Tetal reported	731	68	116	89	203	124	25	83	4	11	
Placement of child in institution rec- ommended	16				5			-		1	
mended	18	3	1	1	8						
official probation Referred to agency	111	1	100	14	35	19	Ď	12	100	1	1
or other court Child returned bome.	37		8	32	11	9		3			*******
Difficulty adjusted Other disposition	367	35	53 38	26		39	21	144		2	
Disposition not reported.	7		1	1	2	1		- 2			

¹ Ninetsen of the 42 courts did not report delinquency cases disposed of uncilloisity; figures for Philadel-whin, which reported on spendard table forms instead of cards, are not included in this table.

Cases discharged from probation.

The 31 courts sending in cards or tables for cases of delinquent children discharged from probation reported 5,029 such cases. The majority (4,493) of these were discharged from official probation. The number of such cases discharged from probation was considerably less than the number officially placed on probation (7,905). Unofficial probation cases were reported by only 15 courts, and almost one-half (273) of these cases were reported by one Ohio court (Hamilton County). The probation period was in most instances of brief duration, usually only a few months. The preponderance of cases in which the length of the probation period was less than one year is partly due to the fact that several courts, among them one large court, made cards only for those cases in which the children were both placed on probation and discharged therefrom during 1927. The figures for children discharged from probation who had been placed on probation before the courts began to use the statistical plan which forms the basis for this report doubtless were less complete in some courts than the figures for children placed on and discharged from probation the same year.

The reasons for discharge from probation were as follows:

Reason for discharge	Number	Per cent distribu- tion
Total	5,009	
Reason for discharge reported	5,007	100
Child reached age limit. Further supervision not recommended ber discharged with improvement. Child committed to estiliation for delinquent children. Child committed to other institution, agency, or individual. Other reason.	2, 259 763 190 481	64 34 4
Resson for discharge not reported.	22	

³ The first edition of eard No. 3 read "Further probationary supervision not recommended." This item was found to be generally used to note the termination of the paried with improvement and a later print of the eard was changed to read "Discharged with improvement before age limit."

The extent to which children who had been on probation were committed to institutions for delinquent children varied greatly in the different courts, the proportion of such commitments ranging in courts reporting 50 or more cases from 3 per cent to 28 per cent. In most of the courts for which the number of commitments was high the courts used county or private institutions for short-term commitments, the purpose of which was chiefly disciplinary; upon release from the institution the child was likely to be placed again on probation.

DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT CASES

Sources of complaint.

In some localities where many social agencies exist the court may prefer to have dependency and neglect cases investigated first by a social agency so that only cases needing court action are brought to court. In other localities, especially where there are few agencies, the court may make its own investigation of cases and receive complaints from any interested person, including parents and relatives. Of the 12,063 dependency and neglect cases for which the source of complaint was reported 48 per cent were referred to court by social agencies and 35 per cent were referred by parents or relatives. The differences in practice among the 34 courts dealing with dependency and neglect cases are indicated by the variations in the percentages of cases received from social agencies and from parents and relatives in the various localities. In general, when the proportion referred by a social agency was large the proportion referred by parents or relatives was small, and vice versa.

The sources of complaint in dependency and neglect cases were as follows:

Source of complaint	Number	Per cent distribution
Total	12,150	
Source of complaint reported	12,063	100
Social agency Porents or relatives Other individual (not prototion officer) Police Prototion officer School department Other source of complaint	5, 727 4, 250 267 666 458 200 216	45 36 4 4
Source of complished not reported	87	.,

The percentage of dependency and neglect cases referred to court by social agencies (48 per cent for the 34 courts) ranged in individual courts reporting 50 or more cases from 10 to 100 and was more than 80 per cent in eight courts.⁸ The proportion referred by parents or relatives (36 per cent of all cases) also showed great variation, ranging from no cases to 67 per cent. The number of cases received from other sources was generally small and showed no unusual variations except in three courts, where large proportions were referred by probation officers—Lake County, Ind. (51 per cent); Norfolk, Va. (21 per cent); and Pierce County, Wash. (28 per cent).

Places of care pending hearing or disposition.

The situation with regard to detention of children in dependency and neglect cases was similar to that in delinquency cases, except that practically no children (7 in 10,611 cases for which place of care was reported) were detained in jail. More than half the children were not detained; they were allowed to remain in their homes pending hearing or their cases were disposed of on the day the complaint was made. Boarding homes were used by most of the courts, but the number of cases so cared for was small. Detention homes, receiving homes or shelters of private agencies, and other institutions were used in slightly more than one-third of the cases. Most of the cases reported as cared for in receiving homes or other institutions were reported by New York City.

San Francisco City and County, Calif.; Bridgeport, Conn.; Hennepin County and Barney County, Mino.; Buffalo, Dutchest County, and Westcherter County, N. Y.; and Mahoning County, Obic.

The places where children were cared for pending hearing or disposition in dependency and neglect cases were as follows:

Place of care pending hearing	Number	Per cent distribution
Total	12, 150	
Place of care reported	10, 611	100
Own home or case disposed of same day. Boseding home. Detection home or other institution. Detection home. Other institution. Fall or police station. Only place of oare. One of the places of care. More than one place of care. Other place of oare.	8, 234 7 6	8000
Place of care not reported t	1,539	

I Less than 1 per cent.
Not including detention home, police station, or juil.
I including Fulladelphia unofficial cases, for which place of care was not reported.

Charges.

More than one-third (38 per cent) of the dependency and neglect cases were referred to court because of improper conditions in the home, including conditions such as immorality or intoxication. More than one-fourth (30 per cent) were referred for insufficient parental care, including lack of care because of illness or death of parents. In only a small proportion of cases (13 per cent) was financial need the chief reason for bringing the child to court. Great variation occurred in charges reported by different courts. For example, in courts reporting 50 or more cases, the percentages referred because of improper conditions ranged from 11 to 77 and those referred because of insufficient parental care ranged from 5 to 68. Four courts reported that more than half their cases were referred because of insufficient parental care. Explanation of these variations may be differences in local procedure. For example, the neglect cases may be referred to the court while dependency cases are bandled by other social agencies, and there may be differences of interpretation as between insufficient parental care and financial need.

The charges on which dependency and neglect cases were referred to court were as follows:

imber	Per cent distribu- tion
12, 150	
12,074	100
908 307 4, 552 3, 620 1, 572 639 576	10 10 20 10 10 10
	76

Dependency and neglect cases were tabulated not only on the basis of the individual children concerned but also on the basis of different families represented. That is, in the latter tabulations each family was counted only once for each time it was dealt with by the court on a new charge involving one or more of the children. The distribution according to charge is somewhat different when based upon families than when based upon children's cases. If the figures are omitted for the New York City court-for which no attempt was made to group cards by families and which handles only cases of neglect, dependency cases being cared for by other agencies—the number of cases of dependent and neglected children reported was 8,907. representing 4,566 families. Of the 4,540 of these families for which charge was reported 20 per cent were referred to court because of alleged improper conditions in the home, 34 per cent because of insufficient parental care, 15 per cent because of financial need, 10 per cent because of questions of custody, 10 per cent because of abandonment or desertion, and 10 per cent because of other reasons.

The three types of disposition used in 99 per cent of the official dependency and neglect cases were commitment to institutions or agencies, placement under supervision of the court or of an individual, and dismissal or indefinite continuance of the case. As is shown by Table 13, almost half (49 per cent) of these dependency and neglect cases dealt with by the 34 courts reporting cases of dependency and neglect were disposed of by the commitment of the child to the care of an agency or an institution, most of which were maintained for the care of dependent children. Such commitments varied in the different courts reporting 50 or more cases from 18 per cent of the cases in Norfolk, Va., to 97 per cent in Hamilton County, Ohio. The relative proportions of commitments to agencies and to institutions by the individual courts indicate differences in local facilities for caring for dependent children as well as differences in court policy with regard to use of institutions or other methods of care for these children. Some courts probably committed the children to agencies, which then may have placed them in institutions. Commitment to an agency represented 50 per cent or more of the dispositions in Hennepin County, Minn., and Buffalo, Erie County, and Westchester County, N. Y.; commitment to an institution represented 50 per cent or more of the dispositions in Marion County, Ind., and Franklin County, Hamilton County, and Mahoning County, Ohio.

Children were placed under the supervision of court officers or of individuals in one-fourth of the cases, court supervision being used more frequently. The most striking variations from the average were Ramsey County, Minn., which reported 62 per cent of its cases disposed of by placing the child under the supervision of a court officer, and Buncombe County, N. C., which reported 65 per cent of its cases disposed of by placing the child under the supervision of an individual other than a court officer. A few courts did not use either of these two types of supervision to any considerable extent.

One-fourth of the official cases were dismissed or continued indefinitely. The percentage of cases so disposed of in the different courts ranged from none in Pierce County, Wash., and Buncombe County, N. C., to 46 per cent in Bridgeport, Conn., and Columbia County, N. Y., and was more than 30 per cent in 7 courts.

Court	Official dependency and neglect cases														
	Total	Disposition													
		Teta- report-	report-		Child placed under court supervision		Child placed under supervi- sion of Indivi- dual				Child commit- ted to insti- tution		Other		Not re-
		ed	Num- ber	Per cent i	Num- ber	Per cent	Num- ber	Per cent	Num- ber	Per cent:	Num- ber	Per cent:	Num- ber	Per cent	
Total.	9,777	9,744	2, 366	25	1,606	19	593		2,100	22	2, 639	27	119	1	20
California: San Francisco City and County	684	584	228	23	65	10	8			30	106	18	17	2	
Semesticut; Bridgsport Hartlord	70 142	69 143	10 28	46 20	1	6		-		22	29 66	42 46	1 0	1 6	
Clay County	213 291	13 213 291 291	30 30 3	4	18 48	5 16	64 18			12 25	45 45 145 2	22 50	7 6	3 2	
White County.	208	207	93	45	25	14	32			T	50	24	T	(1)	
finnessia: Hannepin County	343 111	362 111	134 7	38 6		62	6 2			50 24	42	12			
Buffsio. Clinton County Columbia County	95 48 121 239	95 48 121 259	4 3 55 70	40	1 10 34 80	1 26	7 4 84	=		65 2 22	28 28 19	29 16			
Dutchess County Eric County Pranklin County New York City	34	84 24 3,223 14	15 0 1,007	29 28 31	913	23	6	=		72	1, 257	39	0	(9)	20
Orleans County Westchester County Jorth Carelina: Buscembe County Winston-Salem	297 87 24	207 57 24		29			25 37 11			57	12 20	35			

Ghio; Franklin County Hamilton County Mahening County	262 114 190	261 306 360	24 1 25	0 1 13	23	0	47 2 25
Panneyvania: Barks County Lycoming County. Lycoming County. Mentgemery County. Philadotphia. Tannesses: Memphis. Virginia: Norfolk. Washington: Fieres County. Wiscousin: Dans County.	13 17 31 2,312 190 180 79 43	13 17 31 2,312 185 186 79 43	401 52 08	17 38 37	1 11 499 30 22 6 12	22 19 12 8	17 145 20 41 24 9

1 Not abown where base is less than 60.

1	2	4	53 61	135 61 115	10 41 10
				3 9	
	(f) 3 11	9 5 21	15 20 9	343 37 17	39 19 9
********	4	8	49	30	9

I per cent.

Of the 2,192 unofficial dependency and neglect cases for which dispositions were reported more than half (58 per cent) were reported as closed because some social adjustment was made to relieve the situation. The dispositions in the remainder of the cases were as follows: Referred to an agency or another court, 16 per cent; placement of child in an institution or elsewhere recommended, 6 per cent; child placed under supervision of a probation officer, 3 per cent; and other disposition, 17 per cent.

Cases discharged from supervision-

Sixteen courts reported 1,184 cases of dependent and neglected children discharged from court supervision (which corresponds to probation in delinquency cases), but most of these cases were reported by three courts (San Francisco City and County, 192; New York City, 405; and Philadelphia, 461). In all but 21 of the cases discharged from supervision the child had been placed under supervision by official court order. The contrast between the number of cases of children placed under court supervision and the number of cases in which children were discharged therefrom was not so great in dependency and neglect cases as in delinquency cases. The number officially placed under court supervision by the courts which reported cases discharged from official supervision was 1,677. As in probation cases, the period of supervision was brief, usually only a few months. In 60 per cent of the cases the child was reported as discharged because the situation improved or further supervision was deemed unnecessary and in 23 per cent because he was committed to an institution or agency.

The reasons for discharge from supervision were as follows:

Reneers for discharge	Number	Per cent distribution
Total.	1, 184	100
Child reached age limit. Further supervision not recommended or child discharged with improvement Child committed to institution or agreey Child committed to individual Other reason	8 710 108 30 108	1 80 23 3 3 14

The fir t edition of card No. 3 coad "Further probationary supervision not recommended." This literates found to be used generally to note the termination of the period with improvement, and a later print of the card was changed to read "Discharged with improvement before age limit."

APPENDIX.-TREND IN JUVENILE DELINQUENCY

The statistics for the year 1927 published in the body of this report are the first to be compiled by the Children's Bureau in accordance with the uniform plan outlined, and there are no figures for previous years with which they can be compared. For several years, however, the Children's Bureau has compiled such information as could be obtained concerning juvenile delinquency 1 from the annual reports of the juvenile courts throughout the country Lack of uniformity in methods of compiling statistics used in the different courts and marked variations in inclusions and methods of presentation make the statistics practically valueless for purposes of comparing delinquency rates in one city with those of other cities. Such figures are, however, of value in determining the trend in juvenile delinquency in a given city over a period of years. This fragmentary evidence concerning trend indicates that assertions regarding increase of delinquency have little or no basis in fact, though much unnecessary delinquency exists, and a scientific approach to the problem becomes increasingly important.

The material now available which is of significance in connection with a consideration of trends in juvenile delinquency is summarized under the following headings: Delinquency rates in 13 cities, in different parts of the country, based on annual reports of courts; and statistics of juvenile delinquents committed to institutions during the first six months of 1923 as reported by the United States Bureau of the Census (Children under Institutional Care, 1923).

DELINQUENCY RATES IN 13 CITIES

The table on page 36 shows the number of delinquency cases per 1,000 children of juvenile-court age in 13 cities for which statistics are available for the years 1915 to 1925 or 1926. (For some of these cities statistics can be obtained for part of the period only.) The notes to the table explain the sources from which the statistics were compiled. As has been pointed out, these figures are of value in determining the trend in juvenile delinquency in a given city, but they can not be used for the purpose of comparing delinquency rates in different cities. Great confusion exists with reference to types of cases included, some cities reporting only cases officially heard by the court and others reporting, in addition, cases adjusted unofficially by the probation department. There is also much difference in the extent to which the police of the different cities turn over to their courts the children whom they have apprehended.

The data in this table indicate for most of the cities lower delinquency rates at the end of the period than at the beginning. Slight

Several editions of a mimeographed statement entitled "Trend in Juvenile-Delinquency Statistics," the last deted October 11, 1927, have been issued. Because of the more comprehensive plan in which the Children's Rureses is new engaged this statement will no longer be kept in circulation.

fluctuations from year to year are to be expected and are not especially significant. The decrease in New York has been quite marked, the rate at the beginning of the period being 11.1 as compared with 6.3 in 1926. Providence and Boston, like several other cities, had higher rates during 1918 and 1919, but the Providence rate has declined markedly since 1919. The Boston figures show a marked decrease since 1918 and 1919 except for a slight rise in the period 1923 to 1925, declining again in 1926. The Boston rates for the years since 1920 are considerably lower than the rates for any previous year. The Philadelphia rate has shown little change from 1921 to 1926, though slightly higher rates were reported in 1923 and 1924 than in earlier or later years. The Seattle rate increased rather consistently.

Number of delinquency cases 1 per 1,000 children of juvenile-court age (over 6 years of age and within the juvenile-court age 1); 13 cities, 1915-1986

Year	Ben- tun	Buf- late	Chi- cego i	De- troit	Min- ne- apo- lis i	New Or- leans	New York	Phile- del- phis*	Provi- denca	Rich	BL. Louis	Hent- He	Wesh ing- ton
100e. 100d.	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	10.8 10.5 12.1 1.5 12.9 13.5 14.7 12.9 14.2 11.5	************	34.8 13.6 11.0 11.u 9.8 11.2 12.0 12.5 10.1 8.6	ER. 0 1A. 6 14. 1 15. 9 17. 8	13, 4 13, 7 13, 1 16, 4 20, 7 20, 5 22, 5 18, 7 20, 9 22, 9 22, 9	5.7.4 4.8 6.8 7.4 6.8 10.10 10.10 H.B. 11.1	30. 1 19. 5 20. 1 20. 0 20. 0 20. 0	10. 4 10. 8 13. 8 14. 1 12. 0 15. 9 15. 9 15. 9 15. 9 15. 8 15. 8	45.8 40.1 41.2 40.2 41.2 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44	12.3 13.4 13.4 13.5 13.7 18.1 19.1 17.2	20. 5 18. 9 17. 9 17. 9 16. 9 16. 9 16. 9 11. 9	日本日

The numbers of easy were compiled from the named reports of the courts, either printed or in manuscript, with the exception of the Boston figures, which were compiled from the armusi reports of the State department of correction (farmerly berrets of pricents); the Detroit figures, which were compiled from the annual reports of the Michigan State Welfare Commission; and the Michigan State Residual cards such to the Children's Buress in connection with the bureaut's plan for obtaining uniform [pression-court statistics]. The delinquency figures relate to man, not obtained, with the exception of the Richmond figures, which relate is children; that is, if the same child was in court twice during the year be was counted twice. Cases dealt with unofficially at well as official cours are included. official mass are included.

official trass are included.

1 Population satinated were based on the Ivi0 and 1922 carsumes. If the court energied jurisdiction swer a county the population of the county was used.

4 Chicago, family year Date, I to Mov. 30. Detroit and Weshington, focal year ending June 31, of the year indicated: Boston, some years calendar, other years famil.

4 Figures shows here differ from those in earlier editions of this table owing in shanges in the courts' mathed of counting cases.

JUVENILES COMMITTED TO INSTITUTIONS FOR JUVENILE DELIN. QUENTS AND TO PENAL INSTITUTIONS AS REPORTED BY THE UNITED STATES BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Published census reports of juvenile delinquents in institutions or committed to institutions are available for the years 1880, 1890, 1904, 1910, and 1923. Differences in methods of taking the census make the "gures for the earlier years only roughly comparable, but the statistics for 1910 and 1923 are not seriously affected by such differences. The figures include persons in or committed to institutions for juvenile delinquents and persons under 18 years of age in or committed to prisons and reformatories, jails, and workhouses.

The number of persons 10 to 17 years of age enumerated on a given date in institutions of the kind specified per 100,000 population of the same age was 143.4 in 1880, 149.2 in 1890, and 154.5 in 1923. The relatively slight increase reflects the more adequate provision of institutional care especially adapted to juvenile delinquents in 1923 as compared with the earlier period. It is not possible to present similar ratios for 1904 and 1910, but considering only persons in institutions for juvenile delinquents and not persons in penal institutions the ratio per 100,000 population has been practically stationary since 1904. The growth of the probation system has come mainly within the period since that date.

A more significant figure is the number of commitments during a given period. The total number of delinquent persons 10 to 17 years of age admitted to institutions of all types during the entire year 1910 was 24,854, or 171.7 delinquents per 100,000 of the same age. The corresponding figure for 1923 (estimate based on exact figures for first six months) was 25,565, a ratio of 156.5 per 100,000 population of the same age. (The ratio in 1923 would have been 161 if the small number of dependent children admitted to institutions for juvenile delinquents had been included as it was in 1910.) There has thus been a decline in delinquent children committed to institutions if growth in population is taken into consideration.